                                        WHO WILL GET THEM?

          
 Inter alia, one of the things for which the Jews can be admired and envied is that after 60 years the Jewish community is still hunting the Nazis and other perpetrators responsible for war crimes and crimes against humanity and are taking them to justice. Since January, 2001, thirty two convictions against ‘holocaust’ perpetrators have been obtained, thirty five new indictments have been filed, and hundreds of new investigations have been initiated, despite the somewhat prevalent assumption that it is too late to bring Nazi murderers to justice. The director of the Israel office of the Simon Wiesenthal Center which helps search Nazi war criminals is still hunting Dr. Aribert Heim accused of torturing and killing hundreds of prisoners at Mauthausen Concentration Camp in Austria and Alois Brunner, an assistant of Adolf Eichmann for deporting tens of thousands of Jews to Nazi concentration camp.  It’s for sure that nobody would dare to repeat the war crimes against Jews. The political will of the Jews is inspiring for survivors in post Second World War conflict zones where people still fighting for the national liberation movements and political rights have been suppressed brutally. In post conflict situations, invariably justice has been compromised by the rulers. They have set the bad precedents. In most of the areas after the conflict resolution excesses have been forgotten, dismissed or compromised. In South Africa the perpetrators of apartheid regime were forgiven after the constitution of Truth and Reconciliation Commission. Except Jews seldom there is any example where the perpetrators have been taken to justice for crimes against humanity and war crimes.

With the progression of International Humanitarian Law after the Second World War states have innovated different modes to get away with the crimes against humanity. They have resorted to privatization of human rights violation. Besides state actors the non state actors have/are being pressed into service in the conflict areas during counter insurgency. These non state actors are supported and financed by the state and are promoting the agenda of the army. 
In Kashmir the tactics was used in the year 1995 following the Doctrine for Sub-Convention Operations prepared by government think tanks. The non-state actors worked as extension of the army with their own killing squads hunting and killing selectively, sometime randomly the people they consider are against the Indian state. Even the sympathizers qualified as Over Ground Workers were not speared. They behaved like warlords. Most of them are the former militants having lumpen past. They worked for the army like Dirty Dozen, a famous Hollywood movie. These people commit worst form of human right violations and terrorize the whole population to such an extent that the inhabitants feared less to army then to these renegades. People had to migrate to cities and towns to escape from their wrath. The internal migration unknown to Kashmir so far became a phenomenon due to them. Their chief target was activists of Jamaat-i-Islami, a pro Pakistani religio-political party considered to be recruiting base of the Hizbul Mujahideen, a militant outfit organization. They were rewarded later for the task carried for the state by giving seats in State Assembly. Some of them became legislatures and some of them where appointed as ministers and at different occasions they were sent by Government of India to attend annual meetings of UN Human Rights Commission where these self styled human right defenders promoted the work of External Publicity Division of India. For the editor who has attended four human rights sessions at Geneva it was the greatest shock observing them, interacting with the other Human Rights Defenders in the Serpents Bar and briefing them about what their mentors expected.

          
One such person Ghulam Ahmed Lone alias Papa Kishtwari was arrested at the end of this month on 29th April. Papa Kishtwari has burned scores of houses leaving many families homeless, extorted crores of rupees from civilians at gunpoint, felled thousands of trees and sold them in market, and believed to be murdered nearly hundred innocent civilians, recently revealed by Saffron Growers and Dealers Associations (NGO). He had become law unto himself following a maxim, “have gun will rule”. Despite of 80 FIRs registered in different police stations by the victims of Pampore and its adjoining areas without mentioning his name (because of his fear), police have never bothered to conduct investigation against him. He got arrested in the encroachment of land on a graveyard. The years of frozen anger snow-balled and hundreds of the victims took this opportunity to give vent to their grievances against the person who had kept truth hostage for years.

He was arrested on the minor offence but protest on his crimes against humanity is first such happening in Kashmir. Where as the other perpetrators responsible for other similar violations like Javaid Shah who was killed on 27 Aug 2003 (before his killing he threatened to expose the army and SOG involved in the crimes against humanity) were not confronted by the survivors during their lifetime. Another example of a militant turned renegade turned legislator Kuka Parray who was murdered in September 15, 2003 equally responsible for hundreds of killings, was feared by the survivors and nobody challenged his excesses. Even the National Conference Government felt obliged to him for creating conducive atmosphere for holding elections in 1996. Once in the Assembly, he yelled at legislators that because of him they got opportunities to become legislators. He had patronage from political parties therefore his killing was condemned by Mufti Muhammad Sayeed (former Chief Minister of Jammu & Kashmir) and his minister Muzaffer Hussain Beigh.

         
People are still carrying these tasks and are at large. Still fear is being used as successful weapon in Kashmir. Survivors though know their names on tips and are waiting for the opportunity to expose them at the right time. State and non state actors who have committed crimes against humanity during last 18 years continue committing the crimes unabated. Most of them are from Rashtriya Rifles and are followed by Special Operations Group (SOG) and other police officials. Besides politicians, civil servants and intelligence officers fall into this category. They are getting the rewards for these ‘meritorious services’ rendered for the nation. The lesser would be the number of surviving non state actors who have got eliminated from their mentors “as they knew too much”. How to publicly identify them and prepare a national register of the people responsible for committing crimes against humanity or war criminals is the task of civil society. It needs the will and determination like Jews to do so. Simon Wiesenthal is still alive and active. We should follow him.

KILLING OF TWO CIVILIANS IN PULWAMA

On April 15, 2007, Farooq Ahmed Wani, 27, son of Abdul Rehman and Shakoor Ahmed Dar, 28, son of Abdul Satar were shot dead under mysterious circumstances at Mohanvij, Kakapora. Both were the residents of Mohanvij, a village in south district Pulwama, about 30 kilometers from Srinagar. Farooq was a carpenter by profession and Shakoor was a mason. The residents of Mohamvij area allege that police personnel, who were present in the area regarding an enquiry of a case, killed Farooq and Shakoor. 

On the other hand police claims that the said persons were killed after militants of Hizbul Mujahideen fired upon a car in which two police cops were traveling.    

The killings enraged the residents of the Mohanvij resulting in protests and demonstrations. The protesters blocked the vehicular movement on Srinagar - Pulwama road. Meanwhile, Deputy Commissioner (DC) Pulwama ordered an inquiry into the matter.

Zeba 65, mother of slain Farooq Ahmed said to The Informative Missive, “On the fateful evening of April 15, my son went to the mosque for offering evening prayers. After offering prayers he came out of the mosque and met his cousin Shaqoor Ahmad Dar who had also come out of another nearby mosque. Both of them were talking to each other on the road. Meanwhile, a Santro car bearing registration number JK02C - 7626 stopped near them. A contractor Tariq Ahmad Mir, resident of Hatiwara, Pampore owned the Santro car. He had ferried the police cops namely constable Bilal Ahmad and head constable Ghulam Ahmad of police station Kakapora to Mohanvij village relating to a quarrel case of Arshid Ahmad, who is son of our village head. Arshid had injured a woman of the village with an axe blow and the injured woman had made a complaint in police station Kakapora. Both the police personnel were dressed in civvies. After visiting Arshid’s and the woman’s house they started to move back to Kakapora. But on reaching Shakoor’s house the cops stopped the car where both Farooq and Shakoor were standing. There were some passerby’s also. In the meantime, sound of a gunshot was heard which dispersed the people in the area. After few seconds, the gunshot was followed by a barrage of bullets and all the bullets were fired upon Farooq and Shaqoor”.

 Tasleema 26, wife of slain Farooq said, “After the bullet firing we rushed out towards the road and found Farooq in the pool of blood. He was shot on the backside of the head, on the arm and on legs that had caused his death spontaneously. The angry villagers smashed the Santro car, however the police personnel and the driver Tariq Ahmad fled from the spot. I don’t know why my innocent husband was killed? He was not affiliated to any militant organization or to any security agency. During summers he used to work as a carpenter and in winters he used to weave carpet at his house. We got married in 2005 and yielded a baby, Farhan, who is only six months old. We were hoping for the bright future of our family and particularly of my child, but fate had something else in store for us. My parents had already passed away. My husband meant everything to me, but the cruel fate snatched him away from me. Who will come to our rescue now? We have no support “.

“Farooq’s dead body was carried by the villagers and was taken to the Kakapora police station whereas as wounded Shakoor was rushed to the hospital where he succumbed to his injuries. Police told us that the militants, who mistakenly took them as police personnel, killed both of them. Police claimed that when they stopped the car they found a gunman standing in front of the car who opened fire and killed Farooq and Shakoor. But we contest police claims because if the gunmen opened fire towards the Santro car, aiming to kill the police cops, why didn’t any bullet hit the car, why didn’t any person inside the car got injured?” questioned Mymoona, sister of Slain Farooq.

Mymoona further added, “When the dead bodies were taken to the Kakapora police station. Police refused to take them and told the villagers to take the dead bodies to police station Pulwama. Then the residents took the dead bodies to Pulwama. The police personnel of Pulwama police station received the dead bodies and told to villagers to go back to their places. After they (people) left the police station, police took the dead bodies and kept them at Kakapora bus yard. Police stopped a truck and ordered the driver to take the dead bodies to Mohanvij village. The driver of the vehicle who was the second brother-in-law of slain Farooq refused to take the dead bodies. Police personnel threatened him of the dire consequences and compelled him to carry the dead bodies to the village. Finally he brought the dead bodies back to the village at around 1:00 am. We do not know why all the concerned police stations refused to take the dead bodies and when police personnel of Pulwama police station took them in their captivity, why they sent them back to the village?” 

Abdul Rehman Wani, father of Farooq said, “Farooq was my elder son and he had shouldered all the family responsibilities at a very young age. Due to extreme poverty he quit his studies in the 10th standard and started to work as a laborer. He was very kind and used to offer prayers regularly. He used to manage all the family affairs. Who will bring my beloved back? We cannot get justice because nobody in the village can tell the truth. If anyone opens the mouth next day he would be also killed. Due to the fear of police, nobody wants to say anything regarding the killings. DC, Pulwama ordered a probe into the matter but so far no investigation has been conducted relating the incident”.  

Abdul Satar Dar, father of slain Shakoor told, “I was inside the house when I heard a gunshot followed by a barrage of bullets. I did not know that the bullets were striking my son’s body. Some of the bullet also hit the walls and windows of our house. Shakoor was working as a mason and was supporting his three minor kids; daughter’s Sohaila (8), Ifu (5) and son Yasir (3). Neither was he a militant nor worked for the security agencies. I don’t know who killed my son but whosever killed them had targeted him intentionally. DC, Pulwama ordered the probe into the matter but the report lodged by the police states that it was the militants of Hizb-ul-Mujahidin outfit who perpetrated the incident. I don’t know how far the police claims are true but what I know is that nobody could see in the evening that how the firing broke out”. 

PROTESTS

On next day of the incident April 16, the villagers took both the dead bodies to Kakapora in the form of a procession and held demonstrations in the area. Protesters carrying the bodies of Farooq and Shakoor gathered on Srinagar – Pulwama road and blocked it. The protesters raised anti-police and anti-administration slogans. 

“Both of them were killed in police firing. We have recovered two police bags from the spot,” the protesters said. 

They said that prior to the shootout police party had come into the village to inquire about a case. “After the cops left we heard the gun shots. We ran to the spot and found both of them lying in pool of blood,” the protesters said. The protesters demanded a probe into the incident and asked for punishment to the culprits.

POLICE VERSION

However, police denied that policemen were involved in the shootout. A senior police official told, “Police party that had gone to the village were unarmed and the policemen are nowhere connected with the incident.” 

A police spokesman said that the police party could not retaliate the fire due to presence of villagers on roadside. 

He said that unidentified gunmen fired indiscriminately upon a Santro car (No. JK02AC-7626) at Mohanvij Kakpora. “Tariq Ahmad Mir, son of Lala Mir, of Hatiwara Pampore, who is a daily wager in PHE was driving the vehicle. He was carrying a Police party of Police post Kakapora that was on its way back to Police post, after investigation of a case. Due to firing Tariq Ahmad Mir got injured and the vehicle was damaged.” 

The spokesman said that two pedestrians Farooq Ahmad Wani and Shakoor Ahmad Dar were caught in the firing and sustained bullet injuries. They were rushed to a hospital, where they succumbed to their injuries, the spokesman added.

Relating to the incident police also registered a case wide no. 146/07 under sections 302, 307 of RPC and under acts 7/27 Arms act. Police also stated in the FIR that two militants of HM out fit, Bilal Ahmad Ganai resident of Ratnipora Pulwama and Gulzar Ahmad resident of Wandakhpora Pulwama were heading the shoot out. 

WULLAR LAKE INCIDENT REPORT SUBMITTED

On June 8, 2006, the state government ordered a judicial inquiry into the causes that led to the drowning of 19 school children, a teacher, and a peon of Burning Candle Public School, Handwara, in the Wullar Lake when they were taking a ride on Navy’s boat. Principal District and Sessions Judge Syed Tariq Ahmad Naqshbandi was appointed as Inquiry Officer and asked to submit the report to the Government within a month. Later the period for submission of report was extended to three months with effect from June 8, 2006. 

The Commission promptly issued public notice and 16 persons submitted their statement of facts on affidavits. The Commission then issued show cause notices to Lt. Nehra, Officer Incharge Naval Det., 15-RR MARCOS, Watlab, and two other Navy personnel, who had taken the children on boat ride, and other navy personnel who were present on the shores.
On July 20, 2006, the Commission called Muhammad Rafiq Khan, Principal, and Ghulam Rasool Dar and Fayaz Ahmad Sofi, the Managing Members of the Burning Candle Public School, Handwara, to submit statements on affidavits with supporting materials. Lt. Col Rajeev Sharma, Assistant Judge, appeared on behalf of the navy. 

The report submitted to the government by Inquiry Officer Mr. Naqshbandi said the Principal and the managing members of the School appeared in person and submitted statements of defence on affidavits. But Rajeev Sharma did not choose to file statements of defence on affidavits.

Instead Rajeev Sharma on July 6, 2006 filed a gist of the findings of the Court of Inquiry constituted by the army captioned as “Statement of Facts”. But he declined to produce witnesses without sanction of the Central Government. The report said that accused navy officer and personnel “did not disclose their intention to associate with the inquiry accordingly the Inquiry Officer on July 6, 2006 closed their defence.”

Thereafter the kin of the dead children were asked to produce evidence and 19 witnesses were examined. The Principal/management of the School has also produced six witnesses in their defence. After the evidence had been recorded, 15 persons, claiming to be independent eyewitnesses, filed an application of July 7, 2006, for recording their statements. The application was allowed on July 24, 2007 and statements of 13 persons were recorded. 

The report spread over 150 pages has dealt separately with each clause.

The enquiry report of the Wullar Lake tragedy was submitted to the government by Session Judge Naqshbandi who was appointed as Inquiry Officer on June 8, 2006 and asked to submit the report to the Government within a month. Later the period for submission of report was extended to three months with effect from June 8, 2006.

 “In the first trip, 10 to 15 children, the Principal, a teacher, the drivers/conductors of the buses, accompanied by two navy men, went for boat ride in the Navy Boat Assault Universal Type (BAUT) and returned to the shore. At around 1630 hours, in the second trip, 30 children, two teachers namely Zahoor Ahmad, Abdul Hamid and peon Javed Ahmad Bhat, two navy men, were taken for ride in the BAUT in the Wullar Lake,” the report said.

Before undertaking the second trip, however, the BAUT developed snag as it could not start and was pushed from the shore. And when the BAUT had covered a distance of about 100 feet, it capsized and all the children and staff members of the school drowned in the lake.

Report quoting the kin of the deceased said the death of the children was caused due to criminal negligence of the navy men as they didn’t made any effort to rescue the children when the boat capsized in the Wullar Lake. 

Police station Sopur registered the case FIR No. 139/2006 under section 280/304-A, RPC against the motorboat operator for his rash and negligent navigation but the kin of the deceased were still clamoring for justice. 

The FIRs filed by the Army and the Navy had stated two different versions about the incident. On June 3, 2006, Officer in charge Naval Det Watlab registered an FIR in police station Sopur. It reads: “On 30 May 2006 at 1615 hours school children of the School, Handwara came for picnic to Wullar Lake and nearly 80-90 children with six school teachers approached the BAUT operator at Down Post for Boat Ride. BAUT Operator sought permission from Naval Officer. Naval Officer permitted the operator to carry out the Boat ride for children in batches of 10 each. “At 1620 hours, 24 children boarded the BAUT. The operator took the children for 15-minute boat ride in the Wullar and returned back to shore safely. At 1630 hours, two teachers and 24 children boarded the BAUT for the second trip. The operator asked the teacher to reduce the strength of children in BAUT. He was pressurized by teachers and asked to take the children for boat ride. While the BAUT was turning back, due to imbalance created by children and the teachers from the jetty, nearly five to ten meters away, the BAUT capsized. The MARCOS personnel at the Down Post rushed immediately to the rescue. Naval officers along with additional personnel also joined the rescue and six to nine children were rescued. Remaining four teachers including principal moved away from the site and remaining children boarded the Bus and left the site. In view of the above, you are requested to lodge an FIR.”

The report however, says: “The Statement of Facts of July 6, 2006, not sworn on affidavit, submitted by Lt. Col. Rajeev Sharma and styled as gist of findings of the court of inquiry, presented a different version about the incident.’

 
The Para 4 (a) of Lt. Sharma’s “Statement of Facts” reads:  “Based on request by some teachers, boat ride was organized by MARCOS. All teachers and children went for boat ride voluntarily. The teachers and children were given boat ride purely in good faith. Since boat rides have been enjoyed by various civilians quite often for the past 10 years. The first trip came back safely, however, second time when boat was moving it got struck at the iron railing and when the boat was being taken out some more children jumped in. At around 1630 the Boat Assault Universal Type (BAUT) merely went about 30 meters when Zahoor Ahmad Bhat who was sitting at the forward right edge of the boat stood up and started waving at the shore. Seeing him seven to eight children stood up and centre of gravity of the boat was disturbed causing imbalance. Due to this the boat dipped from far right edge and water entered the boat and it capsized. Despite the caution and best efforts, the boat toppled towards the right.”

Meanwhile, during the inquiry, 24 affidavits containing statement of facts were submitted by the kin of the deceased victims, the School functionaries and the district officials. 

The then Deputy Commissioner Baramulla in his statement has stated: “That on May 30, 2006 a message was received from PCR Baramulla that the School Children have been drowned while they taking a ride in the navy boat. Upon receiving this information I along with SSP Baramulla rushed to the spot. A huge angry mob had gathered on the spot and were shouting slogans against army and navy stationed in Watlab. People alleged the students of the School had been taken for a ride in the MARCOS boat and due to overloading it capsized while ferrying in the lake, resulting in the death of scores of students. The agitated mob attributed the cause of accident due to negligence of the MARCOS. The District Administration stepped-up the rescue operation and by late night 17 dead bodies of the students were fished out and same were dispatched to Handwara at around 11.00 PM in two ambulances and one police truck. The remaining five bodies were retrieved next day morning and were dispatched to Handwara.” 

The inquiry report said that there is “clinching evidence” to suggest that on May 30, 2006, at 4.00 PM, there were two motorized navy boats at the Watlab Ghat, one of which was used to provide free boat ride to the visiting students and staff members of the School, Handwara, while the second boat “was neither used for this purpose, nor even kept ready to serve as a stand-by in the event of any mishap or other untoward situation.”

That on the basis of this information, a case under FIR No. 139/06 U/S 280, 340-A RPC, was registered in the Police Station Sopore. The SHO Sopore took upon himself the task of investigation. During the rescue operation dead bodies of 16 students and one teacher were fished out from the Lake on 30.05.2006, while the remaining 5 dead bodies were fished out next day from the Wullar. During investigation, statements of witnesses, including Lt. Nehra, Incharge Naval Det, Watlab, Pawan Kumar boat guard, Ghanisham and Bali Ram have been recorded. 

“I am, therefore, of the considered view that Lt. Nehra, Officer Incharge, Naval Det and the navy men present in the boat as well as on the shore failed to exercise due care and caution in ferrying such a large number of the students and staff members of the School, in only one navy boat for a ride in the Wullar lake, though another boat was available at the Ghat, which should have been utilized at any rate or kept ready as a stand-by to meet any unforeseen situation in case of any mishap,” the inquiry officer Syed Tariq Ahmad Naqshbandi said.

The report also indicted the Principal of the school and said he has failed to discharge his responsibilities in this regard. 

To statements of facts of the kin of the deceased, which alleged that three navy men accompanying boat forced all the children to board the ill-fated naval boat, the report has taken different view. It says, “There is evidence to indicate that the navy men had given assurance that more children could be carried in the boat in view of its bigger capacity. It need hardly be emphasized that if a person is compelled, there is certain element of force.” 

The report however said that there is overwhelming oral evidence to suggest that the students/staff members, in the second trip, were overloaded in the BAUT, by the navy men. The presence of fast winds in the Wullar Lake is ruled out when the boat capsized. “In these circumstances, the only irresistible inference that can be drawn is that the boat had capsized due to the overloading of children,” the report said.

The report has ruled out that the navy men on board the boat were allegedly drunk and misbehaved with the female students. “There is not an iota of evidence to even suggest remotely that the navy men were guilty of such misdemeanour,” the report said.

The report said Lt. Nehra, Incharge Naval Det Watlab, who had granted permission to the boat operator Krishan Khulvi to take children for boat ride, had not bothered to remain present and to supervise the trips in the BAUT. 

“No safety measures had been taken by the navy officer/men in organizing boat ride for the children, as no life saving jackets or inflated rubber tubes had been provided to the children and staff members while ferrying them in the navy boat.,” the report said. 

The report said MARCOS naval unit, Watlab, comprising 42 men, is nearest to the place of incident, and had they immediately rushed to the spot, they could have rescued most of the children members from drowning.

The report said navy man Krishan Khulvi was the boat operator, while Bali Ram was accompanying him in the boat. “There is overwhelming evidence to indicate that Krishan Khulvi and Bali Ram had not made any attempt to rescue the students and staff members when the naval boat capsized in the Wullar Lake. They rather behaved cowardly, as they swam back to the shore without taking part in the rescue operation. Similarly, the role of the navy man who was present at the naval ghat is equally blameworthy, as he too did not take part in the rescue operation,” the report added. 

The report has quoted the statement Suhail Hussain Reshi, the then SHO police station Sopur. The statement said: “I had not seen any navy man associated with the rescue operations at the ghat, though they were in the lake…. I had seen Lt. Nehra and his four men in the boat in the lake. They were not taking part in the rescue operations. On the other hand work was being carried out by the civilian fishermen. It is also true that the navy had not kept any stand-by boat ready for meeting any emergent situation.”

 
The report said: “In view of the above discussion, findings are returned to the effect that Lt. Nehra, the Navy officer and navy men, namely Krishan Khulvi, Bali Ram and Ghansham, are guilty of criminal negligence, and responsible for the death of 22 students/staff members of the School Handwara.” 


“Lt. K. S. Nehra, the Navy officer In-charge naval Det, MARCOS, Watlab, two navy men, namely Krishan Khulvi the boat operator, and Bali Ram, failed to take appropriate measures to ensure the safety of the children and staff before the boat ride, like providing jackets and inflated tubes to the children. They did not send the children into batches to avoid overloading. They failed to utilize the second navy boat,” the inquiry officer Syed Tariq Ahmad Naqshbandi said.

The report said, “Despite the fact that the naval unit, Watlab was nearest to the spot the children drowned, only a few navy men turned up for rescue work, and that too long after the inhabitants had already started the rescue operation”, the report said in its findings which have been submitted to the government. Clearly mentioning the name of Krishan Khulvi, the boat operator and Bali Ram, his companion in the boat, the report said both failed to rescue the drowning children and the staff, as they swam back to the shore.

 “And even Ghansham, who was on the shore, did not come to the rescue of the drowning students,” the report added. 

Concluding the report recommended that the criminal proceedings should be launched against, Lt. K.S. Nehra, the officer Incharge, Naval Det, MARCOS, Watlab; Krishan Khulvi the boat operator, Bali Ram, Ghanisham, Muhammad Rafiq Khan, the Principal, the School, Handwara for negligence resulting into death of 22 students of the School.  The report has recommended to government to consider payment of at least Rs. 4 lakhs to the next of kin of each and every one of the deceased persons as ex-gratia compensation. 

The report has also asked the Government to consider providing Government job to one of the family members of the deceased person/persons on compassionate ground. And the Directorate of Education was asked to withdraw the recognition of the school forthwith.  

The report asked for following remedial to prevent occurrence of such events in future:

a) That Circular No. DSEK/PO/06 dated 01.05.2006, issued by the Director Schools Education, Kashmir, should be strictly adhered to by all school in so far as regulation of school picnic is concerned.

b) That consent of the parents should be sought in respect of the itinerary proposed by the school

c) That school authorities should carefully select the picnic spot;

d) That children of lower standards classes should not be taken to places, which are unsafe and boat rides, trekking, should not be permitted in their case.  

CURRENT PEACE PROCESS AND RIGHT OF SELF-DETERMINATION

On April 21, 2007, Jammu Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society (JKCCS) organized a seminar on ‘Current Peace Process and the Right of Self Determination’ at Tagore Hall, Srinagar to commemorate the third death anniversary of Aasia Jeelani, a woman human rights activist, who died in a landmine blast on April 20, 2004 while monitoring the State Assembly elections.

Several civil society leaders spoke at the occasion. Zahir-ud-Din, a renowned journalist and writer defined the present peace process in terms of ‘instrument of accession’ which was signed on October 26, 1947. “We rejected the instrument of accession because it is fraud and unclear. It was approved in a camouflage manner and wasn’t supported by the people of Kashmir”.

 Zahir-ud-Din further said, “Government of India has been saying that the instrument of accession was signed on October 26, 1947 at Jammu but in the book “Heir Apparent” by Dr. Karan Singh (Son of Maharaja Hari Singh, the last Dogra ruler of Kashmir), the writer has stated that Maharaja was at Srinagar on 26th October and left for Jammu on 27th October, 1947. The question arises, when Maharaja signed this instrument of accession? And for a moment if we accept this instrument of accession, the validity of this agreement is based on the conditions that support the rights of the people of Jammu and Kashmir. Any agreement that is conditional can be finalized only when the conditions get fulfilled. And if conditions cannot be fulfilled, the agreement can’t be accepted.”

Following Zahir-ud-din, Z. G. Mohammad, a columnist said that Kashmir issue emerged from the instrument of accession signed on 26th October, 1947 and was followed after the Indian army landed in Kashmir on 27th October, 1947. “If we agree with the instrument of accession, there exist two important things. The accession will be conditional and subjected to the application by the will of people which the government of India does not permit us”, said Z. G. Mohammad.


While discussing the resolution adopted by United Nations, Z.G. Mohammed said, “So far seventeen resolutions have been adopted by UN and right of self determination has been recruited because of these resolutions. Most of these resolutions were Kashmir centric. Outside the UN Assembly, United Nations itself tried to find a solution to this problem by appointing three separate commissions. All these three commissions came up with pragmatic solutions but the government of India did not agree with the suggestions and hence did not approve them.”  

         Dr. Mubarik Ahmed, a social activist spoke on the History of Indo-Pak dialogue on Kashmir issue and said majority of the summits conducted between India and Pakistan were not Kashmir specific. India and Pakistan tried to improve their relationship through these summits rather to solve Kashmir problem.

             While remembering the supreme sacrifice of Aasia Jeelani, Dr. Altaf Hussain, a renowned pediatrician said, “No tribute for Aasia Jeelani would be so high who died at such a young age”. Speaking on the aspiration of Kashmiris and current peace process Dr. Hussain stated, “India has been trying to put to tangle the economic tact before all his neighbors and it seems it has successfully persuaded all its neighbors that economic cooperation and economic integration in the south eastern region called SAARC and is going to benefit all the countries of the region. This is uncontested fact. In the process what they are trying to do is not to solve the issue consistently with our aspirations and by our will. They are trying to make grand edifice of peace between India and Pakistan on the debris of our legitimate aspiration. They are welcome to improve their relationship but not on the expenses of our destiny.”

 
Whereas Dr. Hameeda Nayeem, a Reader at the University of Kashmir told, “Right of self determination is our birth right for which Kashmiris have been fighting. Kashmiris are not merely aspired to do things that they could pay for. It’s is our birth right to determine our future according to our own way.  But India has been camouflaging our right as India is involving us in fraud election process and imposing political collaborators on us who don’t have any identity of their own and are working according to the dictations of Delhi.

She defined the peace process as a non ending process which goes on and on and has no aim to resolve Kashmir dispute. It is meant to engage us and once we get engaged we will not fight for our rights and our Kashmiri movement will die its own death. 

Dr. Sheikh Showkat Hussain, Lecturer, Faculty of Law, University of Kashmir said that Kashmiris are not excited with the present peace process because it is not Kashmir centric. Speaking on the importance of self-determination Dr. Showkat said, “The right to self determination expanded after the adoption of resolution relevant to Kashmir. The UN General Assembly adopted so many declarations related to this right. Most of the declarations tried this right to the colonized people and by colonizing the third world people meant only those states which were colonized in traditional sense of the term. They were ready to accept colonizing conditions but not ready to conceive it for their own people. The term is inalienable and it has to be exercised only by the people of Kashmir themselves and no else can do it on their behalf”, added Dr. Showkat. 

   
Gautam Navlakha, a Delhi based democratic rights activist opposed the policy for sub-conventional warfare and the internal operations of Indian Army, and quoting an army chief he said, “According to army their fight is against the divisive forces and our cause is just and we fight to win”. While elaborating the statement he said if we suppose the Jammu & Kashmir moment is divisive because it is secessionist then how does one explain their demand for respecting the right of self Determination is inclusive because it is a right which all state subjects of erstwhile J&K are entitled to. It is the outcome of such an exercise in self –determination that will determine whether it will be accession or secession. Indeed why it is not considered divisive when armed force divide people, to discern supporters as well as hostile and neutral section of populace”.

Parvez Imroz, President of JKCCS emphasized the role of civil society in generating the public opinion vibrant and said JKCCS supports the process which leads to the achievement of peace and resolution of Kashmir dispute. However, the four-point plan ‘Demilitarization, Self Rule, Porous Borders, Joint control’ proposed by President Parvez Musharraf suites them not Kashmiris. India will resolve the Kashmir dispute in the fashion that suites them and benefit them. It is not going to resolve our problem at all .The Kashmir problem according to him can be solved only by respecting the aspiration of Kashmiris. Even the issue cannot be resolved by UN. “It is the irony the issues of Palestine, Kashmir, are lingering at the UN for so many decades now and are yet to be resolved. At the same time there are many identical issues, which were not taken to the UN but were solved. This shows that UN is yet to do justice in solving issues like Kashmir , Palestine, Lebanon so that the suffering of the people are mitigated”, said the President. 

On the occasion Zareef Ahmed Zareef, an eminent poet of the valley was also present. He recited few verses of a famous poem written by Late Manzoor Hakeen.

MISSING FOUND DEAD IN DODA

On April 6, 2007, a dead body was recovered from Wassan Nallah, Doda, Jammu. The dead body was identified as of Nisar Ahmad Wani, 28, son of Abdul Khaliq, a junior engineer by profession and father of four daughters of Lonepora Newa village district Pulwama, Kashmir. Nisar whereabouts were unknown since March 21 after he had left for Pulwama from his work place in Doda. During the two weeks of Nisar’s disappearance his family searched for him relentlessly but they couldn’t find him. Ultimately, his dead body was fished out from the waters of Wassan Nallah, Doda. 

Abdul Khaliq Wani, 65, father of deceased Nisar while talking to The Informative Missive said, “Nisar was working as a junior engineer with a private company engaged with a power project in Kishtwar, Jammu. On March 21, Nisar left for Pulwama from Kishtwar but did not reach home. Few days before Nisar left from Doda, he had told us on phone that he would be back to home by 21st or 22nd March. When he didn’t reach home for four consecutive days we became worried. I made a phone call to his company in order to enquire about him. They replied that Nisar left on March 21. My anxiety increased further and I contacted my elder son Ghulam Mohammad and other relatives and in the last days of March, Ghulam Mohammad and his son Ishtiyaq Ahmad left for Doda to ascertain the whereabouts of Nisar. They searched for him everywhere they could manage to and even filed a missing report in the police station Kishtwar but nothing divulged out. They also walked on foot from his work place to the bus stand Doda and asked the villagers in vicinity of the road about Nisar’s whereabouts but nothing came up. After searching the whole Kishtwar area they returned back to Pulwama”.

Khursheed Ahmad Wani, cousin of the deceased Nisar told, “On April 6 in the morning, we were informed by the police post Kishtwar that Nisar’s dead body has been found near the Wassan Nallah, Doda. They also told us that he might have come under an avalanche that caused his death.  We rushed to Kishtwar police station and asked police to hand over the dead body but they refused and told us that first the dead body would be taken to the hospital for autopsy. We looked at the dead body and found that the nails of his hands were bluish in appearance. It seemed as if his fingertips were squeezed by some instrument and his body looked fresh as if he had died at that very moment. We became suspicious about his death and told police that we would conduct the postmortem in Srinagar. But police refused to do so and moved the dead body to Kishtwar hospital. While conducting autopsy none of the relatives were allowed to enter into the hospital. Nisar’s cousin Ishtiyaq tried his best to enter into the hospital to prevent the authorities from conducting Nisar’s autopsy in the said hospital but he was not allowed. In order to calm him down, the doctors gave him an injection and he became unconscious. Ishtiyaq regained his senses after three days. After conducting the postmortem, the doctors did not provide us the report and did not disclose the reason of Nisar’s death. According to the police, Nisar’s dead body was recovered near a rock lying on the Kishtwar - Doda road. Whereas Nisar’s elder brother had also searched the same place before two days of the recovery of the dead body, but at that time he didn’t found anything there”. 

Nisar’s father Abdul Khaliq further said, “My son went missing on March 21 if he had died in an accident, his dead body would have got decomposed because his whereabouts were unknown for around two weeks but his dead body was fresh. If he had died in an avalanche, then his body would have bore some injury marks but there was no sign of any injury on his body except for his fingertips, then how can police claim that my son died in an accident. Nisar was the only breadwinner of the family. He was supporting his four minor daughters namely Irfana (6), Nishat (4), Khushi (2) and Ulfat (6 months) and his wife Masooda (26). I was myself dependent on him. I don’t know why was he snatched from us?”

The family members also allege that Kishtwar police is not responding to the complaint filed regarding the mysterious death of Nisar. 

FAMILY SEEKS WHEREABOUTS OF MISSING SON

Mushtaq Ahmad Teli, 22, son of Mohammad Akram Teli, resident of Kakawring, Chadura, Budgam went missing in February 2002 from Chadura after he left his house for some work and since then his whereabouts are not known. 


Nazir Ahmad Khan, uncle of the disappeared Mushtaq said while talking to The Informative Missive, “On February 2, 2002 at around 11am Mushtaq left for Chadura. In the evening when he didn’t return we became anxious. In the morning when he still didn’t return we contacted all our neighbors, relatives and friends of Mushtaq in Srinagar and Budgam to search for Mushtaq but nothing came up. We even visited the army and other paramilitary force camps in the area but we got no information about him. We approached police station Chrar-e-Sharief and filed a missing report vide number 07/02. Police flashed the message among all the police stations and even we accessed local media networks and got the matter highlighted. We also wrote an application to the PDP president Mehbooba Mufti and SSP Srinagar and sought their help concerning the matter, but all our endeavors were fruitless. After few days of Mushtaq’s disappearance there were also some rumours in the nearby village that the paramilitary forces at Tujjan near Radar Station, Chrar-e-sharief, arrested Mushtaq. When we visited the paramilitary force camp at the radar station and asked them about Mushtaq, they replied in negative about his arrest. After we visited the camp, the radar station camp personnel started to harass the family as they started visiting our house regularly and were asking for Mushtaq. At times they also searched the house and told us that when he would return tell him to visit the camp. We got some news that Mushtaq has been detained in the Cargo SOG Camp in Srinagar. We rushed to the camp; again the SOG cops did not accept that Mushtaq is with them. At the time of the fake encounter expose in February 2007 we visited many places where the exhumations were conducted but we failed to trace out his whereabouts. Even we participated in many processions with the families of all the disappeared persons”.

“Mushtaq was never involved in any unlawful activity and was never charged of any offence, but we don’t know who subjected our son to the inhuman act of disappearance. He was working as a laborer with his father at the stone crusher at Panthachowk, Srinagar and remained busy with his work. We still hope that Mushtaq is alive and we are waiting for his return,” expressed Nazir, uncle of disappeared Mushtaq.

28 KASHMIRI STUDENTS ARRESTED IN BANGALORE

In a fresh incident of victimization of Kashmiris outside the state, at least 28 students were arrested from Bangalore’s reputed Ghousia Engineering College on April 3. 

They have been shifted to the Central Jail Bangalore and detained without any charge. According to parents of some of the detained students, a Kashmiri student had a fight with a Bihari student four days ago. 

“My son Afaq who is pursuing education in the college told me on phone that some vested interest gave it a regional color and thrashed the Kashmiri students,” Mushtaq Ahmad told. 

Quoting his son, he said the Kashmiri students tried to settle the issue with the Bihari students but they again beat them up. 

“Ironically, the Ramnagar police later arrested the Kashmir students. We don’t know their fate. We tried to contact the principal of the college but his attitude was totally indifferent as he refused to help in release of our wards. We appeal to Chief Minister Ghulam Nabi Azad, who time and again raised the issue of security of Kashmiris in other states, to get our sons released,” the parents of the arrested students said. 

On April 4, the students were sent to judicial remand till April 16. 

Reports said that the students of the Ghousia College Ramnagran, located 60 kilometers from Bangalore, had a minor altercation after a senior Bihari student Zaqir Anwar reportedly abused his juniors (the Kashmiris) with an intention of ragging. “However, on April 2, four Kashmiri students of the college brought 7-8 Kashmiri students from outside the campus to avenge the harassment,” reports said. 

“They assaulted Fahim and Muneer (Bihari students) with sticks and cricket bats causing minor injuries to them. Two Kashmiri students of the college were also injured,” they said. 

On the complaint of the principal of the college, a case under sections 147, 148, 448 and 324 I.P.C.) was registered against 11 Kashmiri students of the college and some unidentified persons. 

On the same evening, nearly 200 Bihari students of the college, shouting slogans against the Kashmiri students blocked the traffic on Mysore-Bangalore road for nearly an hour. 

Police used mild lathicharge to disperse the agitating students who were demanding action against the Kashmiri students. Later a case was registered against the agitating students. 

On the complaint of a Kashmiri student Shujaat Shahul that he and his colleagues were attacked by 13 Bihari students on April 2 near the Principal’s room after attending a compromise meeting, police registered another case under sections 143, 147, 146, 324, 506 of 149 IPC. 

Following the incident, the college authorities declared five days holiday from April 3. Police launched a manhunt against four Kashmiri and some Bihar students allegedly involved in the clashes. 

Deputy Superintendent of Police Ramanagran, Malika Arya Appa confirmed that 28 Kashmiri students and their Bihari counterparts have been remanded to judicial custody till April 16. 

Mushtaq Ahmad who son Afaq is among the arrested said, “It is ironical that the Kashmiri students have been arrested for no fault and the Biharis who attacked them are scot-free. Bangalore police is bent upon implicating the Kashmiri students.” 

Principal of the Ghousia College, Dr Muhammad Hanief blamed Kashmiri students for the clashes. “The Kashmiri students illegally entered the college with some outsiders in the evening and clashed with the Bihari students. As this was a law and order problem police rushed to the spot and arrested the trouble makers,” Dr Hanief told.

When asked if it was not the responsibility of the college to get the students released, he said, “I can’t help. Law will take its own course.” 

However, in an interview with a TV channel, Dr Hanief termed the incident as a “battle of supremacy.” 

“This was not a new thing but things went a bit far this time. It happened all of a sudden; we had no other way to take the situation into control. Whoever is at fault will be punished irrespective of where they come from,” the news channel quoted him as saying. 

The clashes between students from Kashmir and other north Indian states are apparently not uncommon in the Ghousia College, the news channel, monitoring the incident, reported on April 4. 

“But the war of supremacy went a bit far on April 2 evening when boys from Kashmir marched into the college premises and got into a scuffle with the north Indian students,” it said. 

“The divide is evident; while unfortunately violence on campus is not rare in India, this is the first time that a situation has leapt out of control in an otherwise tolerant Bangalore,” it added. 

Meanwhile, the parents of the detained students have appealed Prime Minister Manmoham Singh and Chief Minister Ghulam Nabi Azad to intervene into the matter. “We are not demanding any roads or bridges but release of our wards,” they said. 

The arrested students of the Ghousia College are: 

Shoaib Majid, Mehboob, Afaq Ahmad Mir of Budgam, Mudassir Ahmad Mir of Pampore, Asif Ai Sofi, Ejaz, Shujaat Rasool, Hanief Ahmad of Islamabad, Tasir Sajoor Mufti of Amdakadal, Khalid Danish, Muhammad Muzamil of Varmul, Nassir Khaliq, Nayeem Hamid of Sopur, Asif Altaf of Lal Bazaar, Arshad Safi of Budgam, Yasir Amin of Batamaloo, Mirza Yasir Baig of Jammu. 

The arrested students of BBM Oxford Bangalore are: 

Muzamil Muhammad of Gadpura Srinagar, Khalid Bhat of Peer Bagh Cooperative Lane, Adnan Manzoor of Islamabad, Zuhaib Muhammad of Soura, Umar Ganaie of Sanat Nagar, Sartaz Ali of Lal Chowk, and Sarjeel Ahmad of Budgam. 

Others: 

Tousif Ahmad of Zakura (AMC Engineering College), Suhail Ahmad of Lal Bazaar (employee LE Service Bangalore), Nazeesh of Bagh-e-Mehtab (student Dayanand Sagar College Bangalore) and Inayat of Shalimar Srinagar (Radhikrishna College Bangalore).

Relatives of some of the students, currently camping in Bangalore, said they have been denied medical facility in the jail. “All of them have been kept with hardcore criminals in the cells. Most of them are injured and their condition is deteriorating,” Farhan whose brother Nazish is among the arrested, told by phone from Bangalore on April 5. 

“Our pleas to provide them medical care were turned down by the jail authorities. The attitude of the Karnataka government is totally indifferent. Please tell the Kashmir government to come to their rescue as the students were detained on flimsy grounds,” he said. 

The Kashmiri students studying in various colleges of Karnataka have decided to go on indefinite hunger strike and stage peaceful demonstrations from April 6 against the arrests. 

Meanwhile, the relatives of the arrested students staged massive demonstrations at Lal Chowk, Srinagar, demanding their immediate release. 

“Our sons have become victims of a deep-rooted conspiracy. They had gone to Bangalore with great expectations to study and have nothing to do with hooliganism,” said GH Gurkhu, uncle of an arrested student, Haseen Altaf. 

Gurkhu, a former Cultural Officer of Kashmir University, demanded the management of the Ghousia College should come to the students’ rescue. 

“After their release our wards will continue to study in the college. It’s is the responsibility of the college principal to create a congenial atmosphere in the campus.” Shafeeq Ahmad, whose son Mehboob Safeeq, is among the arrested, said, 

 
“It’s the responsibility of the J&K government to ensure safety of our sons.”

On April 10, all the arrested students were released on bail. Nazish, who was among the arrested students, told by phone from Bangalore that they were released on April 10. “We are all fine,” he said. 

CONGRESS LEADER SHOT DEAD

BARAMULLA, April 1: Suspected militants shot dead a top Congress leader and injured his personal security officer in this north Kashmir district of Baramulla.

According to eyewitnesses, at around 0730 hours, a phiran clad man walked up to Jan Muhammad Kakroo son of Ghulam Nabi Kakroo of Kanli Bagh and fired indiscriminately when he was returning home after offering nightlong prayers in a local shrine, killing him on the spot. 

The gunman also fired on his PSO Sanaullah (belt No.1373) wounding him critically. The PSO was rushed to the SKIMS Srinagar in a critical condition. 

Sixty-year-old Kakroo, who was the district Congress secretary, was also a prominent trader and vice-president of Federation Chamber of Industries Kashmir (FCIK).

No one has claimed responsibility for the shootout.

INQUIRY COMMISSION TO PROBE CUSTODIAL KILLINGS

JAMMU, April 2: The State Government has appointed a Commission of Inquiry comprising Justice ML Koul, retired judge of High Court, to look into various aspects pertaining to the custodial killings and fake encounters.

 
The SRO issued by Law Department in this regard reads:

“Whereas, the Government is of the opinion that it is necessary to appoint a Commission of Inquiry to enquire into a definite matter of public importance, namely the recent alleged custodial killing/fake encounter, resulting in the death of some persons like Abdul Rahman Padder son of Ghulam Rasool Padder, resident of Larnoo, Kokernag, district Anantnag (Islamabad) in the Valley;

“Now, therefore, in exercise of the powers conferred by section 3 of the Jammu and Kashmir Commission of Inquiry Act, 1962, the Government hereby appoints a Commission of Inquiry comprising Justice ML Koul, retired judge of the High Court with the following terms of reference: 

a) Enquire into the causes, circumstances and conspiracy, if any, which led to the death of some persons in alleged custodial killings/fake encounters;

b) Fix responsibility of the persons involved for such killings, if any; and 

c) Make suggestions/recommendations for preventing recurrence of such incidents in future.”

The Commission shall perform all the functions necessary for holding the enquiry or incidental thereto and submit its report to the Government within a period of three months.

The Government further, being of the opinion that it is necessary so to do, hereby direct that the provisions of sub-sections (2), (3), (4), (5) and (6) of section 5 of the said Act shall be applicable to the Commission.” 

SHRC INDICTS MAJOR IN SPO’S MURDER

SRINAGAR, April 2: Indicting an Army Major in the murder of a Special Police Officer, the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) on April 2 directed registration of a case against the accused. The commission also recommended cash relief of Rs 2 lakh to the deceased’s family. 

 
In a complaint to the commission, Misra Bano of Danghiwachi, Baramulla, alleged that her husband Muhammad Ashraf Lone, the SPO, was lifted by the Army on September 25, 2004 at Baramulla during a crackdown. Major Anwar later killed him. She said police had registered a case (FIR 7/2004) but no action was taken against the accused. 

In its judgment, HU Bhat, member of the commission, said, “During the course of investigation the case of murder was established but the security personnel and the authority did not cooperate with the police despite number of letters addressed to the district police.” 

The case was finally closed for want of cooperation from the forces, the judgement said. 

WOMAN GETS JAIL TERM FOR GIVING FOOD TO MILITANTS

SRINAGAR, April 3: The District Magistrate Kupwara has detained a woman of Chowkibal in Kupwara for two years under Public Safety Act (PSA) for providing food to militants. News reports said District Magistrate Abdul Majeed Khanday has detained 35 years old Zareefa Begum wife of Abdul Rasheed Khan for providing food to the militants and showing them the route. The police had accused the woman and her brother Abdul Majeed of having links with the militants. "The district magistrate agreeing to the police recommendations ordered the detention for two years," the news reports said, adding the orders for shifting of the woman to Central Jail has been issued. Abdul Majeed, brother of Zareefa, is also serving detention in the case.

PROTESTS AGAINST TROOPS EXCESSES ROCK BANDIPORE

BANDIPORE, April 3: The inhabitants of Ganaie Mohalla Chittibandi Bandipore staged a sit-in at Dechna on Srinagar Bandipore road and demonstrated against the excesses committed by the troops during the encounter. The protestors alleged that the troops thrashed several persons after the encounter, which started on April 1 and concluded on April 2 afternoon. According to the residents, the army didn’t found anybody from the debris of Muhammad Ramzan Malik’s house, which was completely damaged during the gunfight. Two shops were also gutted in the incident. The people also demonstrated against the troops for harassing the people during the gunfight.

GOVERNMENT GUNMAN MANHANDLES KUPWARA MAGISTRATE

KUPWARA, April 3: Amin Malik, the government gunman-turned-politician, manhandled the Ist Class Executive Magistrate of Kupwara at Drugmullah village of Kupwara district. Police has filed a case against the accused. 

 
Abdul Hamid Zargar, the Ist Class Executive Magistrate, also the Tehsildar, Kupwara, told that Malik has blocked the only pathway leading to the house of his neighbour Mukhta Dar by laying several coils of razor wire, thus rendering his neighbour homeless. And on April 3, when the Magistrate went to the spot to remove the blockade, Malik manhandled him, his staff, and the police escort. 

 
In 1997 Malik joined Ikwhanis, the dreaded counterinsurgency militia of the government. The 75-year-old Mukhta Dar said,  

“Malik told me that militants would some day attack him as ‘I am working for Army’. I thought I would be caught in the middle so I locked my house and started living with my relatives with my two sons and a daughter.” 

 
In 2006, Dar returned home but Malik did not allow him to open the house. “The way to my house was blocked with barbed wires. As I tried to remove it the policemen guarding him beat me up. Then he started to threaten me saying he was the general secretary of BJP,” Dar said.

 
Dar wrote an application to the Tehsildar Kupwara requesting help. The Tehsildar summoned Malik, but he did not turn up prompting the Tehsildar to order his deputy the Naib Tehsildar Drugmulla to restore the pathway to Dar, and if necessary take help from police. 

However, Malik greeted the officials with threats. “Malik told us ‘I will kill you all’. He told us that ‘Corps Commander is my friend and I am the only Kashmiri who attends the meetings of Unified Headquarters’. He boasted of having links with LK Advani,” said an official who was part of the team ordered by the Tehsildar to clear the pathway to Dar’s house. 

 
On March 31 when Tehsildar went to clear the pathway, Malik manhandled him.

The local residents said Malik was working for the army and he was pressuring a family, whose two members were killed by army in Chayal Patti village last year, to accept compensation from the army and hush up the case. 

FORCED TO LABOUR, YOUTH DIES

April 5: One person identified as Rajwali Gujjar of Kunnard, Kupwara was killed after allegedly taken by army for forced labour in bad weather. Residents demand action against the culprits. 

According to locals Rajwali Gujjar, 17, Zakir Hussain, 16, Fakir Din and Farooq Ahmad were intercepted by a patrol party of 10 Madras army on April 3 in Kunnard while they were on way to market. Their identity cards were snatched and they were ordered to report at the 10 Madras camp. 

Besides counterinsurgency operations the camp is used as launching point for the troops on Gulab Post at LoC.

Rajwali, Zakir Hussain, Fakir Din and Farooq according to locals went to camp and were ordered to carry 104-Kg genset to Gulab Post. Rajwali died when he slipped and fell into a river on the way. The three youth who were accompanying Rajwali said they had told the army officers about the danger of snow avalanches and hilly terrain, but were threatened of dire consequences. 

“We were carrying the genset and climbing a slope. Rajwali slipped and fell into river Tyjan. We later fished out the body,” Fakir Din said. SP, Kupwara, Shahid Meraj told that Rajwali was a registered porter with the army. “We have started investigations. We won’t hesitate in registering FIR against army if they are found guilty,” the official said. 

A defence spokesman said the killed youth was a porter with army. “He slipped while crossing a bridge and we failed to save him despite hectic efforts,” he said. 

SHRC RECOMMENDS RELIEF IN FAKE ENCOUNTER, DISAPPEARANCE CASES

April 5: The State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) on April 5, recommended relief of Rs one lakh to the family of a Sopore youth, who was killed in a fake encounter by Army on Line of Control (LoC). 

In his complaint to the commission, Muhammad Amin Banday of Nowpora, Sopore had alleged that his son Manzoor Ahmad Banday was picked up by troops and later killed on LoC. 

The Commission after investigation found that the petitioner’s son and six other boys were picked up from the Mosque and “done to death” on LoC. 

Disposing the petition, SHRC member Habibullah Bhat observed that on the protest of the villagers, the bodies were handed over to their families. 

“This was a fake encounter on the basis of the Supreme Court law,” the member said. 

He recommended a relief of Rs one lakh and benefit of SRO-43 to the petitioner. Meanwhile, in another case, chairperson of SHRC Justice (retd) M Y Kawoos recommended a relief of Rs one lakh to a woman of Kupwara, whose husband went missing in 1991. 

In her petition to the commission, Rafiqa Bano of Lolab had stated that her husband Ghulam Rasool left for Srinagar on May 1, 1991 and is missing since then. The commission after considering the records concluded that Ghulam Rasool was a civilian and not involved in any subversive activity, a statement said. 

It recommended the Government to pay a relief of Rs one lakh and benefit of SRO-43 to her children.

14 YEARS ON, AGED MAN AWAITS PUNISHMENT TO SON’S MURDERERS

April 6: A month before he went missing, 20-year-old Ashiq Hussain Ganai had appeared in the BA 1st year examination from Sopore Degree College. And when the result was declared, Ashiq had secured first division. But he couldn’t see his result.

The tragedy dates back to March 3, 1993 when Ashiq was picked up by the soldiers of JAKLI from Chatoosa camp in north Kashmir’s Varmul district, during a daylong crackdown in Dangiwanchi area. “The soldiers were headed by Major Gurpal Jit Singh and Ashok Kumar,” recalled Ashiq’s aged father Ghulam Rasool Ganai. 

The family knocked the doors of Army camps in the district. Initially, they had thought he would be released soon, but as days passed, they couldn’t trace him. They finally, lodged an FIR (No. 18/93) at P/S Panzla. 

The wait for Ashiq ended after 41 days of his missing when the family recovered his body from Jhelum near Vajibal in Sopur on April 12, shocking the entire area. “I registered a case under section 302 RPC,” said Rasool.

The next day, when the news reached the Sopore Degree College, Ashiq’s classmates took to streets and protested his killing. Police resorted to lathicharge and fired smoke shells to disperse them. Many students were injured and the protests continued for some days. 

Pledging to punish his son’s killers, Rasool approached the court. “The High Court ordered prosecution of the accused but the Home Ministry refused sanction, without citing any reason,” said Rasool. “I also approached the then Governor KV Krishna Rao, George Fernandes besides the Amnesty International. They all promised help.”

When the sanction was declined, Rasool said he filed other writ petition (OWP) No. 1592/93 in the High Court. “I am a poor shopkeeper and earn a very meager amount,” he said. “Now I don’t have many resources to move court again and again.”

Rasool has another son, Imtiyaz Ahmed, who he said is “in a state of trauma” after his brother went missing. “He wanted to become a doctor, but it remained a dream for him because I had no money,” the aged man said. “His brother’s death had a terrible effect on his health and studies.”

Now after 14 years, Rasool still has some hope that his son’s killers would be punished and that justice would be done. “I want my son’s killers punished at any cost,” said Rasool. 

STUDENTS RISK LIVES FOR LESSONS

AS ARMY HAS MINED THE BORDER FENCE OF THEIR SCHOOL

ZACHALDARA, April 7: The life of teenaged students of the Government Higher Secondary School, Zachaldara hangs by a thread when they walk to their classrooms, or while studying or playing in the school. Army has occupied half the school’s playfield and six classrooms, and dangerously enough, laid mines along the fence of the school. If a student unwittingly touches the fence, he would be blown up into pieces, apprehend the school authorities.

Troops of 21 Rashtriya Rifles, army’s counterinsurgency force, occupied the six classrooms and more than half of the playfield in 1997. But after a Fidayeen attack by militants last year, in which two militants got killed, the troops tied explosive devices to the school fencing and also mined the school’s boundary. 

The students and the school authorities said the troops made the student’s hostage when militants attacked them last year.

Apprehending a “major catastrophe” the school authorities have written a letter to the Deputy Commissioner, Kupwara requesting him to persuade army to clear the mines from the fence and the grounds. The letter reads: “We request your good self to take up the matter with commander of 7 Sector RR. The school must be de-mined. There is apprehension of a big tragedy in case students touch the fence.” The authorities have also requested the DC to get the six classrooms of the school vacated of army’s occupation, as the school needed more classrooms.

The pleas of the school authorities of the local residents have not yet yielded any results.

In December last year, S K Singh, the General Officer Commanding of Kilo Force, army’s counterinsurgency grid for North Kashmir, admitted that army has mined some areas “in wake of threats from militants”. He said army would clear these areas of mines. 

“We have written three times to army requesting them to remove the mines but they are not co-operating at all,” said a senior employee in the deputy commissioner’s office. “We have conveyed to them that a major tragedy can occur anytime,” he said.

“We are always concerned about the safety of our children; one year back there was a fidayeen attack at the camp and we thought our children were dead. Army invites us on Eid parties or other functions and we request them to vacate the school, but we can’t expect any good from an occupation army,” said a resident of Zachaldara requesting his name should not be mentioned for fear of reprisal. 

The residents said the students have “picked up bad habits like smoking from soldiers.” A parent wishing anonymity said, “Soldiers give them cigarettes for free.”

A village elder who is among the villagers pleading the case for shifting of the army camp said the revenue department had offered army an alternate place for their camp, but army declined. “We fail to understand why they are interested in occupying the school; they were offered a nice piece of land. Our girls study in the school, we can’t take it anymore,” he said.

The students are searched before they pass through a zigzagged pathway controlled by the troops. “Our bags are thoroughly checked by the soldiers in the morning,” said Irfan, a student, “we can’t concentrate on our studies because we can’t forget the gunfight of Fidayeen last year.” 

Towqeer, a student, said, “Death always stalks us; if there is a mine blast we will die.”

Additional Deputy Commissioner, Kupwara Bashir Ahmad Wani told that “it is matter of concern.” He said, “We will take up the matter with army and I assure that problem will be solved.”

CONSTABLE KICKS 3-YEAR OLD KID IN EYE

RAJOURI, April 9: A family has accused a police constable of kicking a three and half year old child in the eye in Khablan village of Darhal area.

Fazeelat Akhter, mother of the child named Rahil Khan, said the constable Abdul Sattar posted at police station Darhal dragged her father, Muhammad Azam, out of his home and asked him to come to the police station. 

“The constable had approached the family regarding a family feud. My youngest son Rahil clung to the legs of father when the constable was dragging him out, but that brute kicked him in the left eye; Rahil was unconscious for a while,” said Fazeelat Akhter. 

Akhter’s neighbours chased the accused constable but he fled away from the place.

Deputy Superintendent Police Headquarters Rajouri, K S Jasrotia said, he had instructed the police station concerned to investigate the case.

TROOPERS, SOG MEN HARASS MILITANT’S KIN

TRAL, April 11: The residents of Naibugh village in Tral, South Kashmir have accused troopers and personnel from Special Operations Group (SOG) of Police of intimidating a relative of a militant to ensure his arrest. The villagers told that troopers and SOG men have been constantly raiding the house of Muhammad Ishaq Wani, a school teacher for past one month and have been pressurizing him to provide them the whereabouts of his relative who joined the militant ranks in 1999. They said that Wani is an activist of Jamat-Islami, who recently returned to his native village after serving in Ladakh for two years. “We have already met Deputy Commissioner Pulwama and Superintendent of Police (SP) Awantipura and have apprised them about the raids and the harassment." Villagers said that if there is no let up in the raids and the intimidation, Wani along with his family members would be left with no other option other than migrating from the village.

DEAD BODY OF DISAPPEARED DIG OUT 

April 11: The body of a 55-year-old labourer Abdul Rahim Wagay of Kakapora, Pulwama who went missing on October 2006, was found few meters away from his home. 


One of the residents of the area got suspicious on the evening of April 10, after he saw crows and dogs moving around a dry pond. He immediately informed the other villagers who moved to the spot and dug out the body. People identified the deceased by face. 


According to the residents of the area who were protesting the killing of Abdul Rahim said, Rahim went missing in October 2006 and since then his whereabouts were a mystery. 


The shocked residents held demonstration to protest the killing and demand action against the persons involved in the killing and disappearance of the labourer. 


District officials told that samples were recovered from the body in presence of district magistrate for forensic tests. The body of Rahim was handed over to his family for last rites. 

ARMY TO TABLEEGI MEN: INFORM US BEFORE YOU PREACH
April 12: On April 8, the troops of 21 Rashtriya Rifles, army’s counterinsurgency force, summoned president of the Auqaf Committee Handwara, Ghulam Rasool Banday and ordered him to inform army whenever the men of Tableegi Jamaat, an organization of wandering religious propagators, come to Handwara to preach Islam. 

The order has sent shock waves among the people associated with the Tableegi Jamaat.

 “Now we are the targets. They now want to curb our religious freedom. We have remained aloof from political issues, but this order has shocked us,” said Jaleel Ahmad, who is associated with the Jamaat. “Our aim is to preach the teachings of Prophet (SAW) and nothing else.” 

Another Tableegi man, on condition of anonymity for the fear of reprisal, said in the past two months the army raided many mosques where Tableegi men had stayed during nights. “They don’t want us to preach our religion,” he said. 

The army’s exercise to keep a tab on religious groups has angered police. A middle-rung police officer in Handwara, wishing anonymity, said, “Army is doing this on its own. Only police is authorized to check the credentials of any person, army is not authorized to do so.” 

Superintendent of Police, Handwara, Haseeb Mughal said, “Government has not directed us to keep a check on the movement and activities of Tableegi Jamaat people.” He said the army can check the I-card of any person, and if they need further information, they should seek it from police. He admitted that RR-21 arrested two persons belonging to Tableegi Jamaat on Zachaldara road and later handed them over to police station, Handwara. He said the two Jamaat men were set free after verification. 


Defence Spokesman Col A K Mathur said, “These allegations are false. However, we do keep a vigil on people.”

CRPF PERSONNEL THRASH BEGGAR

April 12: A mentally challenged person was beaten to pulp by paramilitary CRPF troopers near Sonawar. 

He was rushed to Sher-e-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences (SKIMS) Soura, where his condition is stated to be critical. 

According to news reports, CRPF men caught hold of a mentally challenged man popularly known as Jumma Mattu near the UNO office and thrashed him without any provocation. 

Reports said that CRPF men kept on beating the mentally challenged person till he started beating profusely. However, people and the policemen rescued him from the clutches of the CRPF men and shifted him to SKIMS, where doctors attending upon him termed his condition to be critical.

ARREST OF THREE YOUTH SPARKS OFF PROTEST IN RAMBAN

JAMMU, April 12: The vehicular traffic on Jammu-Srinagar National Highway was disrupted for couple of hours when a large number of people took to street and staged a protest demonstration over the arrest of three youth, soon after chief minister Ghulam Nabi Azad left Ramban town after addressing a public rally today. 

"Two local youth were picked up by police soon after people started leaving the venue of the public rally. The youth were the workers of Congress which had gathered from far flung areas of the mountainous district to hear Azad at the inaugural function of Deputy Commissioner's office" a local congress leader said. 

Sources said that police had received specific inputs from the army intelligence, which led to the arrest of three youth. Two of them were identified as Farooq Ahmad and Fayaz Ahmed both residents of Duligam Banihal while identity of third was not ascertained. 

However, as soon as the news of arrest of local youth spread in the town, people took to streets and blocked the National Highway near busy Dumail-Ramban Chowk for atleast two hours. 

Shouting anti-police and anti-government slogans, the protestors were demanding immediate release of the youth who according to them were innocent. "Police is wrongly labeling them as militants only to show higher authorities their efficiency and they were part of the rally", Imityaz Ahmed Khanday, a local Congress leader said, adding that youth belong to a far off village and had come to listen chief minister Ghulam Nabi Azad's speech. 

On assurance of police and civil authorities that the youth would be released after confirming their identity from the concerned police station, the protestors dispersed and the traffic on the Highway was resumed. 

Confirming their arrest, senior police officer said that the youth were arrested on suspicion and keeping in view the chief minister's security. He, however, said that they would be released if the concerned police station would clear their identity. 

ARMY TO PROBE FAKE ENCOUNTER KILLINGS

April 13: A defence ministry spokesman said that army authorities will extend all cooperation to the Special Investigation Team (SIT) of the Jammu and Kashmir police investigating fake encounter killings in the Kashmir valley. 

The spokesman said this after Chief Investigating Officer (CIO) informed Chief Judicial Magistrate (CJM) on April 12 that the SIT was not getting cooperation from the army authorities. 

The CIO Javid Kaul said six to eleven army personnel, including a Colonel, a Major and other ranks, involved in the killing of one Hafiz Showkat in a fake encounter in October last year, could not be arrested because of non-cooperation from the army. 

IRCON GUARD SHOT DEAD

April 16: Suspected militants shot dead a guard of IRCON at Naina in South Kashmir’s Pulwama district on April 16, afternoon, the police spokesman said. 

He said the suspected militants fired upon IRCON guard Bishen Das of JKAP 6 battalion from point blank range while he was accompanying the IRCON engineers who were conducting a survey in the area. Das was rushed to a hospital where doctors declared him brought dead. 

The spokesman said that IRCON engineers escaped unhurt in the attack. 

Meanwhile militant outfit Al- Mansoorian has claimed responsibility for the killing. 

PROTESTS AGAINST DETENTION OF SHOPKEEPER

April 17: Today, the people of Khanyar protested against the arrest of a shopkeeper. According to news reports, police arrested Abdul Rashid son of Abdul Aziz, a chicken dealer from his shop. The people of the area held demonstration against the arrest and shouted slogans. The protestors demanded immediate release of the detained shopkeeper. The protestors accused the police personnel stationed in Khanyar police station of concealing the information about the shopkeeper. 

Meanwhile, in another incident, personnel of SOG police detained a student Waseem Ahmad Dar son of Abdul Gani from his house at Yaripora. The people of the village have demanded release of the student.

CRACKDOWN IN BALHAMA FOR 2 DAYS, VILLAGERS ALLEGE REPRESSION

SRINAGAR, April 19: The army, CRPF and Special Operation Group (SOG) has cordoned off Balhama and its adjacent hamlets, a 16 kilometers distance from Srinagar, since April 17 evening. The door to door search is on and the people have been directed not to leave the village. 

The people including children and elderly people were ordered to assemble near a mosque and a government school and when last reports came in the process was going on. These people were issued dictates early in the morning and at around 1300 hrs on April 18, later they were allowed to return to their homes for lunch. 

"We were called back to the same place after half an hour. And in the evening they left us at around 6: 45 pm," said a local pleading anonymity. The locals added that the area has been cordoned off on the pretext of some militants hiding here in some house. "But we ask them that if they have any specific information why not to cordon that house particularly? Why to harass everybody here," the locals asked. 

The security forces comprising of 50 RR from Khrew camp, 42 RR from Khunmoh, 182 battalion CRPF from Pulwama and Special Operation Group (SOG) have cordoned off the area. Nobody is allowed to leave the village in the evening once the security forces suspend their operation for the day. 

A heavy deployment of forces could be seen in and around the area. "The forces have threatened us that if they failed to find out militants today they will call our women out from homes by tomorrow," said a local on the condition of anonymity. 

Balhama comprises of around 900 hearths, Befina 100 and Aparpora around 50. The people in these three villages are called out to assemble daily since Tuesday. "They have formed different search parties comprising of our youth. Even our children were not spared and they are being used as human shields," added a local, of Balhama. 

The locals alleged that the security forces turn upside down their houses during the search operation. "We fail to understand that even in the worst phase of turmoil we have not seen such type of search operation and what happened during this so called normalcy. The security forces have broken all the locks inside our houses," locals of Aparpora alleged. 

WOMAN SHOT DEAD BY TROOPS

April 20: A 50-year-old widow was killed allegedly in army firing in a forest in Kupwara sparking massive protest demonstration in the border district, official sources said. 

Fazi Begum, 50, widow of Abdul Razak, had gone to Trech-Kandi forest in Natnoosa area to fetch firewood and fell to the bullets of army troops engaged in an anti-militancy operation, the sources said. 

Confirming the killing of the aged woman, Senior Superintendent of Police, Kupwara, Vijay Kumar said it is premature to say anything about the incident. 

On April 21, nine persons, including a police official were injured after protesters demanded action against the troopers involved in the killing of Fazi. 

According to the eyewitness, hundreds of residents of Trich and adjoining villages carried the body of Fazi and blocked Srinagar – Kupwara road.  The protesters were intercepted by a column of police and paramilitary CRPF personnel, who resorted to baton charge to disperse them, however protesters offered stiff resistance and clashed with the cops and CRPF men. 

In the police action and mob retaliation at least nine persons including Deputy Superintendent of Police R A Qadri and three policemen were injured. 

The protesters refused to bury the body, until killers are not punished we won’t bury her, the protesters shouted. 

Later higher officials reached the spot and pacified the protesters and assured them that stern action would be taken against the troopers, if their involvement in the killing is established. After the assurances from the top officials villagers buried the body.

STAGE-MANAGED ENCOUNTER SPARKS PROTESTS IN HARWAN

SRINAGAR, April 21: A day after what police and troops called it an encounter and public terms it state-managed encounter in Harwan on city outskirts. Residents staged massive demonstrations against the security agencies, accusing them of loot and harassment. 

Shouting slogans against the Special Operations Group (SOG) of Police and paramilitary CRPF, the residents demand stern action against those involved in staging a fake encounter, in which one residential house was completely damaged. 

We will continue the protests till the cops and troops who were involved in the staged encounter are not punished. We can’t let them destroy our house and get away, the angry protesters said. They blocked the main road, burnt worn out tyres and did not even allow the troops vehicles to pass-by. 

As protests continued on the road, physically challenged Ghulam Nabi Bhat and his family looked upon the debris of their three-storied house. Their relatives and neighbors tried to console them but in vain. 

I am on road lost everything, Bhat said. 

Recounting the fateful day, Bhat said, I was sitting outside my house when a police officer R P Singh accompanied by CRPF men cordoned it at 3 pm on April 19.

He (Singh) told me where are militants in your house. I strongly denied their (militants) presence and asked the troops to search the house to clear their doubts. But they refused, Bhat said. 

As fate would have it, Bhat forgot to carry away to safety his nine-month grandson Abrar from the kitchen. Finally, the troops allowed me to rescue him, he said. Bhat was yet to see the worst. 

Suddenly, he says the troops and SOG men opened indiscriminate firing on his house. But it was totally one-sided. They blew up the house by firing mortar shells on it and within minutes it was razed to ground, he said and took a deep breath. 

On Friday, the SOG men and CRPF personnel removed its debris but could not find the bodies of what they call militants when there were no militants wherefrom will the bodies appear. The encounter was just staged for spreading a reign of terror in the area, Bhat fumed. 

He accused the CRPF personnel and SOG men of stealing jewelry of his daughter Rafiqa and daughter-in-law Dilshada. 

They have also stolen two lakh rupees of my son Ghulam Mohiuddin. This is open loot and I want stern punishment against the accused, he said. 

Pointing towards the burnt utensils, Bhat said we haven’t eaten anything for last two days. The troops have shattered my world for no fault of mine. 

His cousin Muhammad Maqbool, in whose house the troops had taken position, also accused them of theft. 

Showing broken suitcases and empty jewelry boxes, Maqbool said a chain, pendulum, two earrings of my wife are missing. Besides, Pashmina shawls worth Rs. 25,000 have also been stolen. 


Due to blasting of Bhat’s house, Maqbool’s house has developed cracks. It is dangerous to live in this house, as I fear it can fall anytime, he said. 

PRO CRPF PK Tripathi, however, refuted the allegations. CRPF had cordoned the house on specific information. We rescued the inmates and then a militant hiding in the house fired upon our troops. In the exchange of fire the house was gutted. However, the militant who is probably injured took advantage of darkness and managed to escape, Tripathi said. 

He recovered an AK-47 and magazine from its debris. The allegations about theft are totally baseless, he added. 

FAMILIES, NEIGHBOURS OF VICTIMS UNDER THREAT

FAKE ENCOUNTER KILLINGS

April 21: The arrest of Special Operations Group (SOG) personnel accused of killing at least five civilians in fake encounters for rewards and promotions has brought no respite to the affected families as they are under constant threat for fighting the case against them.

Families and neighbors of two fake encounter victims Abdur Rehman Padder, a carpenter and Ali Muhammad Padder, a cloth seller both residents of Kokernag, Islamabad alleged that the relatives and friends of one of the accused SOG men Police Farooq Ahmad Padroo are harassing them. 

Some relatives of Farooq Padroo have filed complaints against our neighbors for helping us to fight the case. Besides, some cops whom Farooq employed with other accomplice’s follow us wherever we go, Ghulam Rasool, father of the slain carpenter told. 

Rasool’s neighbors Muhammad Maqbool Mir, Bashir Shiekh, Ghulam Muhammad Padder and Mohiuddin Padder said police recently informed them that a complaint has been filed against them. 

Farooq’s relatives actually want that we should isolate Abdur Rehman’s family. That’s why they are resorting to pressure tactics. But we are with truth and will continue to extend our support to the family, they said. 

But these cheap tactics have strengthened our resolve to seek stringent punishment against the accused, said Rehman’s sister Kulsooma. 

Abdur Rehman, father of five children was picked by the SOG on the allegedly on instance of Farooq Padroo and later killed in a fake encounter at Waskoora, Ganderbal. 

Shamima, wife of another victim Ali Muhammad Padder alleged that Farooq Padroo, brother has made her life a hell. 

Farooq’s brother Maroof is using subtle pressures to avenge his brother arrest. Actually he took two lakh rupees from my husband for purchasing his Sumo. When my husband demanded, he (Maroof) got him killed through his brother, Shamima alleged. 

I want to know why he was released few days after arrest and demand action against him, she said. 

A father of three kids, Ali Muhammad Padroo went missing on March last year from his home in MotiGawran, Kokernag. Later in the night he was killed by SOG and troops of 24 Rashtriya Rifles in a fake encounter at Hari Ganwan in Kangan. He was then labelled as a Pakistani militant Shaheen Bhai.

3 CRPF MEN SUSPENDED FOR BEATING SHOPKEEPER

April 21: Three paramilitary CRPF troopers were suspended after they beat up a shopkeeper at Awantipura in south Kashmir’s Islamabad district. 

According to news reports, CRPF men from 141 Battalion beat up the shopkeeper Sameer Jalal son of Jalaludin in Awantipura on the Srinagar- Jammu highway. 

As soon as the news of the incident spread in the area people in large numbers assembled on the Jammu- Srinagar highway and staged a protest, demanding stern action against the erring troopers, the reports said. 

It said later Deputy Superintendent of Police (DSP) rushed to the spot and informed the CRPF commandant about the unruly behavior of his men. 

The reports said that the CRPF commandant reached the spot and ordered suspension of the trio. The suspended CRPF men are Kewal Sharma, Satnam and Ali Muhammad.  

THRASHING OF STUDENT BY TROOPERS SPARKS PROTEST

April 23: The residents of Punjgam and Udipora villages at Awantipora took to streets against repressive measures by army on villagers during cordon and search operations. 

The villagers raising anti-army slogans demanded stern action against erring troopers of 55 Rashtriya Rifles, who according to villagers were responsible for beating and injuring 16-year-old student during house to-house search in Punjgam village on April 23 morning. 

The merciless beating of Showkat Ahmad Wagay son of Wali Muhammad Wagay by troopers at his village Udipora left him injured and his condition at Sher-e-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences Soura, where he was shifted, is stated to be critical troops of 55 Rashtriya Rifles on Monday laid a siege of Panjgam village in the morning and started house-to-house search during which some soldiers at nearby village of Udipora forcibly entered into the house of Wali Muhammad where they gave a severe thrashing to Showkat, the residents told. 

They said Showkat received blows of rifle butts on his head causing severe injuries. The villagers took the youth to Sub District Hospital Bijbehara where the doctors referred him to SKIMS in critical condition. Soon after the incident, people at Udipora and Punjgam staged massive protest demonstrations against the Army. 

During the protests, villagers had scuffle with the troops, who in order to quell the demonstrations also fired in the air. 

Even firing in air by troopers failed to cool down protestors who were demanding action against Army men responsible for thrashing of the youth. 

The agitated villagers only dispersed after senior officers from police, army and civil administration reached the village and apologized for the excesses committed by erring army men. 

The residents alleged that two days back some soldiers from Punjam Army camp had asked Showkat to set right a water pipe of Sadbahvana (God will) scheme donated by the Army last year. The water pipe had stopped functioning after few months only after the launch. The villagers said that Showkat had refused to obey army men. The villagers alleged that a soldier with code name Bilal has let loose reign of terror in the village. 
AFTER 8 YEARS CRIME BRANCH COMPLETES INVESTIGATION
BANIHAL, April 28: After eight years of investigation into alleged killing of a civilian in fake encounter at Ramban, the state’s Crime Branch on finally arrested two Special Police Officers (SPOs) and a civilian who worked for police as an informer. 

Highly placed sources told that names of some senior police officers, including Senior Superintendent of Police, Deputy Superintendent of Police, Assistant Sub-Inspector and Hawaldar figure in the custodial killing case of 1995 at Ramban, investigated by the Crime Branch. 

During the investigation, the names of some civilians reportedly working as police sources have also figured. 

Sources said a team of Crime Branch, which reached Ramban on April 27, arrested two SPOs and a civilian who was a police source. 

Highly placed sources told that the then SHO Sonaullah Naik at present posted with IRP as Deputy Commandant would be arrested from Jammu, while a police officer of the rank of Senior Superintendent of Police would be detained for questioning after getting nod from the higher authorities. 

It is almost after eight years that Crime Branch has completed its investigation and issued a formal list of the accused. 

Sources said on, Crime Branch deputed a team headed by an inspector to Ramban and Banihal, where they arrested Nazir Ahmad Wani and two SPOs. Sources said that the then SHO Sonaullah Naik presently posted with IRP at Jammu is likely to be arrested in few days. 

Sources said that the arrest of some top police officials cannot be ruled out if the investigating agency did not succumb to any sort of pressure. 

Highly placed sources in crime branch on the condition of anonymity said that names of more than ten persons including the then SHO, an ASI Hawaldar and two SPOs besides a civilian have figured during the investigation. 

Sources said the investigation revealed that on November 3, 1995, Ayaz Ahmad Wani son of Abdul Rashid Wani resident of Bankote, Banihal, was picked by the then SHO Banihal on the orders of then additional SP now SSP, and was taken to Police Station Ramban, where he was subjected to third degree torture continuously for four days. 

Sources said since Ayaz was subjected to third degree torture, he developed severe problems and fell ill following which police called a local doctor. 

However, the doctor suggested police to take Ayaz to Jammu for specialized treatment. 

But he was kept in the police custody for another two days. After the condition of Ayaz, started deteriorating day-by-day, on November 9, he was taken to Government Medical College, Jammu. 

However, instead of responding to the treatment, he breathed his last on November 10 at 4.30 PM in GMC, Jammu. 

The doctors at GMC conducted Post-mortem, which reported torture as the cause of death. 

The family of the victim after receiving the dead body attempted to lodge an FIR against the erring police officials including the then SHO and Additional SP but failed in registering the same. 

After knocking various doors for justice, the parents of the victim finally approached Court of Law and later filed Public Interest Litigation before Supreme Court besides filling an appeal before National Human Rights commission. 

The apex court, in response to the PIL directed state government through Chief Secretary Vide order Number 9339/SC/PIL dated May 20 1996 to initiate inquiry into the matter, sources said. 

Finally on the instruction of government, a case FIR no. 65 /1998 under section 302/RPC was registered in Ramban police station. However, the police did not made any concrete progress in the case and following the persuasion of the parents of the victim the case was handed over to Crime and Railway Branch in the year 1999.

BUDGAM VILLAGERS ACCUSE TROOPS OF FORCED LABOUR

April 30: Army is forcing the men of Charle, Devar, and Khan Peto villages in Budgam district into labour, a delegation of residents told. 

The delegation said that Charle, Devar, and Khan Peto villages were remote. Politicians come to seek votes during election time and media doesn’t know we exist, so we came to Srinagar to inform government, said one of the men in the delegation. 

The delegation said even though farming season has begun farmers are yet to start farming in their fields because soldiers of 34 RR camp frequently take the men for forced labour. When we walk to our fields, troops intercept us in the way and take us to camps; we are forced to cut trees and bring timber and firewood from the forests, said a villager of Charle. 

From our village 12 people have to attend the RR camp daily. We are being forced to dig bunkers in the camp, said a youth of village Devar. Sometimes they are outside our homes even before we have breakfast. We are not even allowed to have lunch at our homes. 

A village elder of Khan Peto said the troops forcibly take the youth for the highly dangerous task of checking the roads for explosive devices with the army’s Road Opening Parties (ROP). 

The residents of these areas said the matter was brought into the notice of civilian authorities, but they only assured of help, which never came. 

Superintendent of Police, Budgam told if residents had informed me I would have resolved the matter. I would still inquire about it. 

Army spokesman Col. Mathur denied the allegation and said that troops have hired a TATA Sumo vehicle and TATA 407 from two villagers and nobody was forced to do work for army. 

NEWS IN BRIEF

· DECOMPOSED BODY RECOVERED

April 7: Police recovered a decomposed body of a man from Garura, Bandipora. Police said that the body is believed to be of Shabir Ahmed Mir son of Ghulam Muhammad of Galkul Guroora, who had been abducted by unidentified gunmen one and half year before. 

· TROOPERS BEAT SOG MEN

April 7: The soldiers from 14 Grenadiers near Kralpora in frontier district of Kupwara allegedly beat Personnel of the Special Operations Group (SOG) of Police on April 7, sources said.

They said that the troopers intercepted SOG party near the entry point of the village and rebuked them for entering into their territory, the sources said, adding troopers later beat up the SOG men injuring at least five of them.

· SOLDIERS, SOG MEN EXCHANGE FIRE

April 7: According to the news reports, the soldiers of 49-Rashtriya Rifles traveling in a Sumo- JK-03-3298 came face to face with the SOG men who were traveling in another Sumo JK-03-4884 near Dialgam and fired at other. 

In the incident Major Basu was critically injured, the reports said. 

· 2 INJURED IN IED BLAST

April 12: A police spokesman said that Bashir Ahmad Malik, 16, and Junaid Ahmad son of Arshad Malik of Thathri Kilshey Tulail were injured after an IED exploded near Gulab Kilshey post Tulail in north Kashmir. 

· 2 BODIES RECOVERED

April 16: Police recovered bodies of two men from Kursu Rajbagh in the civil lines area on April 16th morning, the police spokesman said. He said that apparently deceased seem to be outsiders and both are Muslims, and their identity and cause of the death is being ascertained.

· BODY RECOVERED

April 17: Police recovered the body of Ishfaq Ahmed Khan, 30, son of Ghulam Ahmed of Zainakadal from river Jehlum near Pamposh Colony, Noor Bagh. 

· SCHOLAR DISAPPEARS
A hafiz (one who had memorized the full Holy Quran) after getting admission in Darul-Uloom (Islamic school) Rahimiya in Bandipora, Baramulla disappeared on March 30, 2007. The victim has been identified as Faisal Yousuf Khan son of Mohammad Yousuf Khan of Uri, Baramulla. 

SUICIDES AND FRATRICIDAL KILLINGS BY TROOPS

· CRPF MAN ENDS LIFE

April 4: A barber of paramilitary CRPF ended his life by hanging himself at Sopore in north Kashmir’s Baramulla district. 

According to news reports, the body of barber Ranjeet Hakan of CRPF’s 179 battalion was recovered from the Sopore camp. 

· RR SOLDIER SUICIDES 

April 11: A soldier of 52 Rashtriya Rifle (RR) shot himself dead with his service weapon at his company headquarters at Upalna in north Kashmir district of Baramulla. The soldier was identified as Pardeep Yadav.  

· SOLDIER DIES MYSTERIOUSLY

April 13: A soldier was found dead at his camp in Uri, Baramulla. According to reports, gunshot wounds on his body suggest that the soldier either committed suicide or killed by his colleagues.  

· CRPF DEPUTY COMMANDANT SHOT DEAD BY COLLEAGUE

April 14: A Deputy Commandant of Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) was shot dead by a havaldar inside the Cargo building of Jammu airport at around 8:30 pm.


The deceased has been identified as Naval Singh, 5, of Haryana C/O 150 BN CRPF. However, the accused was identified as Havaldar Sukhan Sittu Seth of Bengal of the same battalion. 

· CRPF TROOPER SHOOTS COLLEAGUES, SELF

April 16: A Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) head constable committed suicide after injuring critically two of his colleagues in a camp in Pulwama district of South Kashmir. 

A CRPF spokesman told that head constable Jaswant Singh of 183 battalion shot at and critically wounded head constable Ajit Singh and Ran Singh. He said that before other CRPF personnel present in the area could overpower Jaswant, he also shot himself dead with his service weapon. 

· ARMY JAWAN COMMITS SUICIDE

Apr 17: An Army jawan committed suicide by shooting himself in Kandi area of district Rajouri.

A police spokesman said that Sepoy, Romesh Kumar of 20 Rashtriya Rifles unit, located near Kotranka in Kandi, shot himself by using his service weapon inside the barrack at around 10.30 pm. 

OFFICIAL STATEMENTS 

· 1200 MILITANTS OPERATING: IG CRPF

April 9: The Inspector General of Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) Subesh Kumar Singh said 1200 militants are operating in the valley. The IG told that these are the estimates given by the police and other agencies. 

· NO TROOPS WITHDRAWAL IN JK: ARMY 

April 11: Army’s Northern Command General Officer Commanding-in-Chief ruled out troop withdrawal from Jammu and Kashmir. “Situation is not yet right for army to go back to barracks and leave the people in militancy,” he said.  

· TROOPS WOULD GO TO BARRACKS ONLY WHEN SITUATION IMPROVES: GOVERNOR      
April 11: Governor Lt. General (Retd) S K Sinha said that army has been deployed in the state to help the ‘Civil administration’ which could be withdrawn and send back to barracks only when the situation in the state improves. 

· BSF OPPOSES DEMILITARISATION

April 20: Border Security Forces’s Inspector General JB Negi vehemently opposed the issue of demilitarization in Kashmir. The official, however, admitted decline in the infiltration compared to the previous years.

· 40% DROP IN JK VIOLENCE: UNION MINISTER 

April 29: Union Home Minister Shivraj Patil claimed there had been a 40 percent drop in militancy-related incidents in Jammu and Kashmir and the North East. Terrorist incidents in Jammu and Kashmir and the North East has dipped significantly by 40 percent during the UPA regime. 

CHRONOLOGY OF APRIL 2007 INCIDENTS

April 1: Two militants and two soldiers were killed in violence related incidents while a Congress activist was shot dead by the unknown gunmen. 

April 2: One HM militant and a soldier were killed in separate incidents of violence in the state. 

April 3: Six persons were injured in a grenade explosion at Naidkadal, Srinagar while a woman was killed by unknown gunmen at Tral.   

April 4: Dead body of LeT militant was recovered from Jammu’s Doda district.

April 5: One soldier died in an encounter in Panjipora, Bijbehara meanwhile police recovered a dead body of a militant of LeT and a youth dies after allegedly taken by army for forced labour in Kupwara. 

April 6: Three Al Badr militants, one HM militant and one soldier died in separate incidents of violence in the state.   

April 7: Police recovered a decomposed body of a man from Garura, Bandipora. Police said that the body is believed to be of Shabir Ahmed Mir son of Ghulam Muhammad of Galkul Guroora, who had been abducted by unidentified gunmen one and half year before. Meanwhile, another dead body was recovered from Wassan Nallah, Doda. The deceased disappeared on March 21, 2007.   

April 8: No incident of killing reported from any part of the state. 

April 9: One foreign militant was killed in Jammu province. 

April 10: A 50-year-old man died and eight others received injuries when some person lobbed a grenade of the vehicle of 9 IPF BN of JK police at Batamaloo in Srinagar. 

April 11: A soldier of 52 RR committed suicide at Company Headquarters at Upalna in north Kashmir district of Baramulla 

April 12: Two persons injured in a landmine explosion at Gulab Kilsey post in Tral. 

April 13: Five LeT militants were killed in an encounter with troops in Kupwara in north Kashmir while a soldier was found dead at his camp in Uri. According to reports gunshot wounds on his body suggest the soldier either committed suicide or killed by his colleagues.  

April 14: Two Let militants were killed in an encounter with police and troops in Shopian area while a CRPF trooper succumbed to the injuries he received in a grenade explosion in Batamaloo while a CRPF Havaldar killed his deputy Commandant inside the Cargo building of  Jammu airport. 

April 15: Four militants including two HM militants and two civilians were killed in violence related incidents while headless body was recovered from paddy fields between Gundipora and Pingelana, Pulwama.   

April 16: One HuM militant, one civilians and one IRCON security guard were killed in violence related incidents in the valley. 

April 17: One army soldier committed suicide while a dead body of Ishfaq Ahmad Khan, 30, s/o Ghulam Ahmad of Zainakadal, Srinagar was recovered.  

April 18: One person from Dangerpora Sopore was fired upon by some unidentified gunmen at his house, which caused his immediate death. While two dead bodies were recovered by police from Barso Awantipora. 

April 19: One civilian was shot dead by unknown gunmen at Dangerpora, Shopian area of district Pulwama. 

April 20: Two HM militants were killed in an encounter at Harwan while troops allegedly killed a 50-year-old woman in Handwara. 

April 21: One CRPF personnel succumbed to his injuries he received during an encounter while two throat slit bodies were recovered from separate places. 

April 22: Three HM militants were killed in an encounter with troops in Rajouri district. 

April 23: One militant and a soldier were killed in violence related incidents in the valley while two dead bodies were recovered from two separate places.  

April 24: Two HM and one LeT militants were killed in separate encounters with troops. 

April 25: One civilian was shot at in Bemina area of Srinagar by some unknown gunmen. 

April 26: One JUM militant was killed in an encounter with troops in Lolab, Kupwara. 

April 27: No incident of violence reported.

April 28: Three LeT militants were killed in an encounter with troops in Doda district while a woman namely, Fareeda Bano lost her life when hit by a grenade splinter in Dragbal, Pampore. 

April 29: Four LeT militants were killed in Kupwara in an encounter while two dead bodies were recovered from separate places. 

April 30: One CRPF and one police cop injured in a grenade explosion in Kunzar, Baramulla. 

KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF APRIL 2007

	Date
	Troops
	Militants
	Civilians
	Others

	April 01
	2
	2
	-
	1 Congress activist 

	April 02
	1
	1
	-
	-

	April 03
	-
	-
	1
	-

	April 04
	-
	1
	-
	-

	April 05
	1
	1
	1
	-

	April 06
	-
	3
	-
	1 dead body recovered 

	April 07
	-
	-
	-
	2 dead body recovered 

	April 08
	-
	-
	-
	-

	April 09
	-
	1
	-
	-

	April 10
	1
	-
	-
	-

	April 11
	-
	5
	-
	-

	April 12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	April 13
	1
	5
	-
	-

	April 14
	1
	2
	-
	-

	April 15
	-
	4
	2
	1 dead body recovered 

	April 16
	-
	1
	1
	1 IRCON security guard

	April 17
	1
	-
	-
	1dead body recovered 

	April 18
	1
	-
	1
	2 dead bodies recovered

	April 19
	-
	-
	1
	-

	April 20
	-
	2
	1
	-

	April 21
	-
	1
	-
	2 dead bodies recovered 

	April 22
	-
	3
	-
	-

	April 23
	1
	1
	-
	2 dead bodies recovered

	April 24
	-
	3
	-
	-

	April 25
	-
	-
	-
	-

	April 26
	-
	1
	-
	-

	April 27
	-
	-
	-
	-

	April 28
	-
	3
	1
	-

	April 29
	-
	4
	-
	2 dead bodies recovered 

	April 30
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Total 
	10
	44
	9
	15

	Total
	78


	Date 
	EJK / CK
	Women Killed
	Children Killed
	Alleged disappearances

	April 03
	-
	1
	-
	-

	April 20
	-
	1
	-
	-

	April 28
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Total 
	0
	3
	0
	0


 


WOMEN – CHILDREN KILLED 





April 3: Unidentified gunmen shot and critically wounded a 25-year-old woman at Noorpora Tral on the intervening night of April 3. 


A police spokesman said unidentified gunmen barged into the house of Bashir Ahmed Zargar at Noorpora Tral and fired upon on his daughter Sitara from point blank, killing her on the spot.





April 20: Villagers of Tirch Handwara accused the troopers of 47 Rashtriya Rifle (RR) of killing a woman Faizi when she was fetching wood from a forest along with other women of the area. 


	Disagreeing with the villages, the troops claimed her killing in crossfire between them and militants, which the eyewitness rejected. The villagers said the killing was intentional. 


April 28: A woman namely, Fareeda Bano died when hit by a grenade splinter hurled by suspected militants to target troops in Drangbal, Pampore area of district Pulwama. 





Editorial





On May 30, 2006 students and staff members of the Burning Candle Public School, Handwara, were taken to School picnic in three buses. They were first taken to the Ziarat Sharief of Baba Shukur-Din (RA), where they stayed till 2.00 PM. �Then, they were taken to Watlab Rest House for a while. Thereafter at 4.00 PM they were taken to Watlab Ghat in buses. The students and staff members alighted from the buses near the sentry post, commonly known as Middle Post, which is on the bank of the Zainagir Canal and is manned by soldiers of 15-RR battalion of army. The Naval Det (MARCOS), is deployed at Watlab to prevent trans-Wullar movement and housed in the buildings belonging to Public Health Engineering Department. They Navy personnel came down from the steps to the Wullar Ghat.





 The Boat Assault Universal Type (BAUT) is used by the Naval Unit. There is a pump station of PHE near the Naval Det. for lifting water from Wullar Lake, which is taken through huge pipes to the treatment plant. As per the evidence, the total strength of the officers and men in the Naval Det, Watlab, on May 30, 2006, was 42. Army personnel belonging to 15-RR were also stationed in the Naval Det, who perform sentry duties at the “Middle Post” and “Down Post”. The nearest villages are Bangladesh, Zurimunz and Watlab. All these villages including the Wullar Ghat fall within the jurisdiction of Sopore Police Station. 
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